
1 

AGENDA 
Mason Transit Authority Board 

Regular Meeting 
August 17, 2021, 4:00 p.m. 

Mason Transit Authority 
MTA Transit-Community Center 

Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
Pursuant to Governor’s Proclamations 20-28.15 and 20-25.14, the public 

meeting shall be held virtually using the follow ing WebEx credentials 
To join by phone: 1-408-418-9388 

Meeting number (access code): 2557 664 0376 (Password) 0790 
Members of the public may also attend in person. 

P lease Note: To be compliant with current TSA requirements, face masks are still 
required when on transit property that is considered to be a transit hub, and the Transit-

Community Center is considered to be one.*   

OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT – Limit of five (5) minutes per person 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – An executive session will be held pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 
relating to litigation or potential litigation. Action may follow the executive session. Session is 
closed to the public. 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 
1. Pg. 03: Approval of the minutes of the July 20, 2021 MTA regular Board meeting.
2. Pg. 07: Check Approval: July 10 – Aug 15, 2021

REGULAR AGENDA 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 13: Transit Development Plan – Actionable (Amy)

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 42: Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) – Actionable (Amy)

INFORMATIONAL 
Reports 

1. Pg. 52: Financial Reports
2. Pg. 58: Management Reports
3. Pg. 66: Park and Ride Update
4. Pg. 67: Operational Statistics

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

ADJOURNMENT 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 1



 

2 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 
 
 

MTA Board Meeting 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

September 21, 2021 at 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

MTA Transit-Community Center* 
Conference Room 

601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 

 
 
 
 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting 
July 20, 2021 
MTA Transit-Community Center 
Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Sharon Trask, Chair; Cyndy Brehmeyer, 
John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Matt Jewett, Wes Martin (arriving at 4:38PM), and 
Kevin Shutty. Quorum met, Board Chair Trask and Board members Brehmeyer, 
Dorcy and Martin attended in person and the remaining named Board members 
were present via WebEx virtual conference. 
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: Sandy Tarzwell and Randy Neatherlin 
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Not Present: Greg Heidal, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present in Person: John Piety 
 
MTA Staff present: Amy Asher, General Manager; Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager; 
LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager; Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities 
Manager (via WebEx); Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Authority Board and Tyler Hildebrandt, 
Technical Support Analyst. 
 
Others present via WebEx virtual conference: Robert Johnson, MTA Legal Counsel and 
Elizabeth Safsten of WSDOT. 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the July 20, 2021 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. Campbell/Dorsey. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 and 2 as follows: 
 

1. Minutes of the MTA regular Board meeting of June 15, 2021. 
2. Payments of June 12, 2021 through July 9, 2021 financial obligations on 

checks#35334 through 35431, as presented for a total of $2,409,028.06.  
 

Campbell/Brehmeyer. Motion carried. 
 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 3



2 

 

               

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS [None] 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Third Amendment to Agreement PTD0044. LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services 

Manager, shared with the Board the discussions with WSDOT that resulted in the change of 
scope to include eligible park and ride safety/security construction expenses against 
potentially unspent Rural Mobility Competitive funds previously applied to Operating Projects 
A and B for the biennium ending June 30, 2021. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority 
Board approve Resolution No. 2021-16 that approves the Third Amendment to Agreement 
PTD0044 and authorize the General Manager to sign the agreement. Dorcy/Brehmeyer. 
Motion carried. 

 
2. Surplus Vehicles. Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager, indicated the three 

vehicles identified in the agenda and resolution have exceeded their useful life and are ready 
for surplus. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board adopt Resolution No. 2021-17 
and approving the surplus and disposal of vehicles as set forth therein. Dorcy/Shutty. 
Motion carried. 

 
[The two County Commissioners attending the meeting recused themselves from Item 3. 
However, because there was not a quorum at the time that the Cooperative Agreement was up 
for consideration, it was temporarily tabled to see if a quorum would be reached prior to the 
adjournment of the meeting.] 
  
3. Removal of Previously Authorized Staff Member and Approval of New 

General Manager to Sign on Financial Accounts. Ms. McNulty stated now that 
Amy Asher had joined MTA as its new General Manager, it was appropriate to remove 
Mike Ringgenberg and add Amy Asher to have signing authority on financial accounts and 
any and all other accounts requiring the MTA General Manager signature. Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2021-19 removing Michael 
Ringgenberg from signing on financial accounts for Mason Transit Authority and authorizing 
Amy Asher, new General Manager, to have signing authority for the Mason County Treasurer 
Depository Account currently held at Columbia Bank, as well as any and all other accounts 
that typically require the signature of the MTA General Manager.  Brehmeyer/Dorcy. 
Motion carried. 

 
4. First View of Transit Development Plan. Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager, 

described for the Board that this was the annual plan and that two public hearings have 
been scheduled and provided their dates. He also stated that this is a first view only. The 
proposed final form will be brought back to the Board at its August meeting. 

 
5. MTA Board Composition Review.  Amy Asher, General Manager, provided information 

relating to the Board composition review that occurs every four years. She was also looking 
for any input from the Board before the process begins. 

 
6. Request for Proposal.  Mr. Ringgenberg shared with the Board that MTA received a 

request from LMTAAA to submit a four-year commitment to continue the Volunteer Driver 
program. MTA does not plan to submit as it does not have a sufficient number of volunteer 
drivers to meet contractual obligations; made even more challenging since the beginning of 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 4



3 

 

               

the COVID-19 pandemic. Mr. Ringgenberg has been in conversation with LMTAAA and they 
are looking for another agency that may have greater success in recruiting and retaining 
volunteer drivers. 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS: 
 

• Financial Reports:  Ms. McNulty provided an overview of MTA’s finances for the 
previous month. She also requested feedback from the Board as to whether or not she 
should continue to create separate reporting of the T-CC from JP or if the Board would 
accept the information in a combined format. The Board approved receiving a combined 
format moving forward.   

• Management Reports:  No additions. 
• Park and Ride Update: Mr. Krier provided a status report of all of the park and ride 

projects. Mr. Ringgenberg shared that a ribbon cutting ceremony for the completed Pear 
Orchard Park and Ride was scheduled for August 4 at 1:00 PM with more details to 
follow. 

• JayRay Report:  Mr. Ringgenberg indicated that JayRay is doing a phenomenal job 
tracking website hits. The redesigned website now matches up with other neighboring 
transit agencies, making it easier for ridership to have seamless website experiences. 

• Operational Statistics: Mr. Ringgenberg shared that ridership is slowly and steadily 
increasing and that soon he will be meeting with Dispatch to begin examining ridership 
patterns. He also indicated that he had just been informed that the Belfair dialysis clinic 
is closing and all the patients from Belfair will be coming down to Shelton for treatment. 
 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: Ms. Asher thanked the Board for hiring her. She also 
expressed appreciation for all the great work by staff and employees of MTA. Mr. Ringgenberg 
has been taking her out to meet others. She is emailing Board members to meet with them one-
on-one. Mr. Ringgenberg also took her on a tour of all the facilities and locations from an 
operational perspective. Mr. Krier will be taking her on a similar tour, but from the maintenance 
and facilities perspective. She will also be meeting with Loretta Swanson of Mason County Public 
Works with regard to the Belfair Park and Ride. The audit began the day prior and is working 
with Ms. McNulty and the SAO. Additionally, she will be meeting with management staff 
regarding the preparation of the TDP and STIP. 
 
[Wes Martin arrived at 4:38 PM and the Board Chair announced that there was now a quorum 
with regard to the consideration of the Cooperative Agreement, originally Item 3 on the 
agenda.] 
 

7. Request for Proposal.  Mr. Ringgenberg shared with the Board that MTA received a 
Cooperative Agreement relating to the maintenance responsibilities for the Pickering 
Road and Cole Road Park and Rides. Mr. Krier also indicated that the agreement 
specifically identifies what MTA’s responsibilities will be for both park and rides. 
Additionally, Mr. Krier provided for an estimated annual cost of $20,000 as MTA has not 
had these types of responsibilities previously and we will have a better idea of those 
costs after a year. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the interlocal 
Cooperative Agreement between Mason Transit Authority and Mason County for the 
purpose of maintaining the Pickering Road and Cole Road park and ride locations and 
approve  Resolution No. 2021-18 authorizing the General Manager to sign the 
agreement. Campbell/Dorcy. Motion carried with Commissioner Trask and 
Shutty recused themselves from voting. 

 
 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 5



4 

 

               

COMMENTS BY BOARD:  . 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 4:45 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETING  

 
BOARD MEETING 

 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

August 17, 2021 at 4:00PM 
On-line via WebEx and in person at: 

Transit-Community Center Conference Room 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 6



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 7



DocuSign Envelope ID: FAD87955-752B-4659-AECF-1A59BC33A6C6

8/13/2021

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 8



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 9



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 10



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 11



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 12



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Transit Development Plan (TDP)  
Prepared by:  Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager 
Approved by:  Amy Asher, General Manager 
Date:    July 20, 2021 
 
 
Background: 
 
The initial draft of the proposed Transit Development Plan (TDP) for Mason Transit 
Authority was provided for first viewing at the July 20, 2021 Board meeting. Since that 
viewing, MTA has conducted two public hearings on July 29 and August 9. The period 
seeking input, comments or questions from the public was open until 4:00 PM on 
Wednesday, August 11, 2021.  
 
The following changes have been made since the July Board meeting: 
 

• Updated Planned Capital Expenses in Table 4 
• Updated the Multi-year Financial Plan section 

 
Citizen Advisor to the Board, John Piety, attended both public hearings and had no 
additional changes to the TDP. No other citizens attended either public meeting. 
 
 
Summary:  Approve Transit Development Plan (TDP). 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Transit Development Plan 
Draft for 2021-2026 with the 2020 Annual Report for submission to the Washington 
State Department of Transportation by September 1, 2021. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 13



 

Page | 1 

 

Mason Transit Authority 
790 E Johns Prairie Rd 

Shelton, WA 98584 
 

 
 

 
  

  

Date of Public Hearings: 

July 29, 2021 and August 9, 2021 

Adopted:  August 17, 2021 

Prepared by Mason Transit Authority Staff 
 
 

w 

 
 

 2021-2026 

TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
and 

2020 Annual Report 
 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 14



Page | 2 
 

Table of Contents 
 
 
Plan Adoption, Public Hearing and Distribution ......................................................................................... 3 

Plan Adoption ........................................................................................................................................... 3 

Public Participation Process .................................................................................................................... 3 

Plan Distribution ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

Description of Service Area, Operations and Facilities .............................................................................. 4 

Service Area .............................................................................................................................................. 4 

Operations ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

Map 1 – Service Area ................................................................................................................................ 6 

Table 1 - Fares ........................................................................................................................................... 8 

Facilities .................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Park and Ride Lots ................................................................................................................................... 9 

State and Agency Goals, Objectives and Strategies .................................................................................. 9 

Table 2:  2021 – 2026 Goals, Objectives, and Strategies, and Alignment with State Goal .................. 10 

Local Performance Measures and Targets ............................................................................................... 16 

Table 3:  2021 – 2026 Performance Measurements and Targets .......................................................... 17 

Plan Consistency ......................................................................................................................................... 17 

Planned Capital Expenses .......................................................................................................................... 18 

Table 4 – Planned Capital Expenses ...................................................................................................... 18 

Planned Operating Changes ...................................................................................................................... 19 

Table 5 – Planned Operating Changes .................................................................................................. 19 

Multiyear Financial Plan ............................................................................................................................. 19 

Capital Improvement: ............................................................................................................................ 19 

Table 6 – Capital Purchases ................................................................................................................... 20 

Operating Financial Assumptions through 2026 .................................................................................. 20 

Projects of Regional Significance ............................................................................................................... 21 

Agency History, Organizational Structure, Accomplishments, Outlook and Outreach Coordination ... 21 

Board of Directors: ................................................................................................................................. 22 

Citizen Adviser to the Board: ................................................................................................................. 22 

Public Outreach: ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

2020 Accomplishments: ......................................................................................................................... 24 

Table 9 – 2020 Accomplishments .......................................................................................................... 24 

 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 15



Page | 3 
 

Plan Adoption, Public Hearing and Distribution 

Plan Adoption 
Mason Transit Authority (MTA) Board of Directors adopted the 2021 Transit 
Development Plan on August 17, 2021 

Public Participation Process 
 Public Comment Period: July 14, 2021 - August 11, 2021 
 Comments Submitted to: MTA@masontransit.org 
     Mason Transit Authority 
     Amy Asher, General Manager 
     790 E Johns Prairie Rd 
     Shelton, WA 98584 
 

Public Hearing: Mason Transit Authority held two public hearings on the 
Transit Development Plan on July 29, 2020 at 5:30 pm at the Port of Allyn 
18560 E State Route 3, Allyn, WA 98524 and August 9, 2020 at 5:30 pm at the Transit-
Community Center, 601 W Franklin Ave, Shelton, WA 98584. 
 
Notice Posted to Website: MTA posted a notice of the hearing on the 
Transit Development Plan to its website at www.masontransit.org on July 12, 2021. 
 
Notice Published in Local Paper: The Shelton Journal published a notice of the 
hearing on the Transit Development Plan on July 22, 2021. 
 
Requests for Paper or Digital Copies: MTA allowed the public to request a paper or 
digital copy of the Transit Development Plan on and after July 16, 2021 by emailing 
MTA@masontransit.org. or by calling (360) 426-9434. 
 
Available to the Public for Review: MTA allow the public to view a copy of the draft 
Transit Development Plan at the Mason Transit Authority Business Office, 790 E 
Johns Prairie Rd, Shelton, WA 98584 and at the Transit-Community Center, 
601 W Franklin Ave, Shelton, WA 98584. 

Plan Distribution 
On August 18, 2021, Mason Transit Authority distributed the adopted 
Transit Development Plan to:  

• PTDPlans@wsdot.wa.gov 
• The agency’s assigned WSDOT Community Liaison. 
• The Transportation Improvement Board via: 

o Vaugh Nelson, Finance Manager at vaughnn@tib.wa.gov 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 16

mailto:MTA@masontransit.org
mailto:MTA@masontransit.org
http://www.masontransit.org/
http://www.masontransit.org/
mailto:MTA@masontransit.org
mailto:MTA@masontransit.org
mailto:PTDPlans@wsdot.wa.gov
mailto:PTDPlans@wsdot.wa.gov
mailto:vaughnn@tib.wa.gov
mailto:vaughnn@tib.wa.gov


Page | 4 
 

o Chris Workman, Engineering Manager at chrisw@tib.wa.gov 
• All cities, counties and regional transportation planning organizations within 

which Mason Transit Authority operates. 
 

Description of Service Area, Operations and Facilities 

Service Area 
Mason Transit Authority serves the general public throughout Mason County and 
provides regional connections with other transits and modes of transportation. 

Regional connections with other transit systems occur Monday through Saturday 
with Intercity Transit, Sound Transit and Grays Harbor Transit in Olympia; 
Kitsap Transit and the Washington State Ferry system in Bremerton; and 
Jefferson Transit at Triton Cove State Park.  Regional connection with Squaxin Transit 
occurs Monday through Friday at the Squaxin Island Tribe Park and Ride Facility near 
the intersection of SR-101 and SR-108. 

The majority of MTA’s connecting services are at transfer facilities located near 
services that allow connections to other ground transportation including 
Washington State Ferries in Bremerton and Greyhound and Amtrak in Olympia. 

Service is available to persons traveling to and from area schools including 
Olympic College, South Puget Sound Community College, Evergreen State College, 
and Grays Harbor College by using MTA to transfer to Intercity, Grays Harbor and 
Kitsap Transit systems at respective transit centers. 

Route schedules and maps can be found on MTA’s website at 
http://www.masontransit.org/ 

Operations 
At time of publication of the Transit Development Plan, MTA was running reduced 
service due to COVID-19.  Days of operations were Monday – Saturday.  Beginning July 7, 
2021 MTA resumed services back to Triton Cove State Park to meet Jefferson Transit and 
provide continued service thru Mason County from Jefferson County. 

MTA provides services consisting of local and regional deviated fixed routes, 
Worker/Driver commuter service to Puget Sound Naval Shipyard (PSNS) and public 
commuter services on high demand regional routes, Demand Response (general dial-
a-ride), Vanpools and volunteers using private cars under the Volunteer Driver 
Program that serves those over the age of 60 needing out-of-county services.    

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 17

mailto:chrisw@tib.wa.gov
mailto:chrisw@tib.wa.gov
http://www.masontransit.org/
http://www.masontransit.org/
http://www.masontransit.org/


Page | 5 
 

MTA is currently operating on a reduced service level due to the low ridership with 
COVID-19, our current hours of operation of the transportation service are 4:00 a.m. 
to 8:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 6:00 a.m. to 7:30 p.m. on Saturday.  There 
is no service on Sunday, and either no service or reduced service on observed 
holidays.  MTA operates ten (10) Fixed Routes on weekdays and five (5) routes on 
Saturdays that allow deviated service to persons traveling off designated routes.  
Dial-A-Ride service operates in rural areas where there is no fixed route service or 
where deviations are not possible as well as in populated areas of Mason County for 
people who have difficulty using the routed service.  All Dial-A-Ride service is open to 
the general public.  Riders using Dial-A-Ride can make a trip request from two (2) 
weeks prior to the preferred pick-up time but may request a ride at any time if there 
is availability.  All vehicles in MTA scheduled service are equipped with bike racks and 
are accessible to persons with disabilities. 

MTA coordinates all service requests with other local and regional area 
transportation providers. Squaxin Transit coordinates local service with MTA regional 
service at Kamaliche. MTA partners with local and regional human and social services 
providers so that the best service possible is provided throughout the region on a 
regular basis. 

MTA administers a Volunteer Driver Program (VDP) that is possible through 
partnership with the Lewis, Mason and Thurston County Area Agency on Aging and 
funding from the Federal Older Americans Act and the Washington State Senior 
Citizens Act, as well as donations from recipients. The VDP provides essential 
transportation for seniors (60+) who are unable to drive or use public transit to their 
out-of-county medical appointments and other essential services. To provide this 
service, MTA utilizes volunteers that donate their time and drive their own vehicles. 
In 2019, the Volunteer Driver Program served 138 clients and covered 1,020 rides, 
42,792 miles and 1,701 volunteer hours. 

At MTA’s April 20, 2021 Authority Board meeting, the vanpool program was 
terminated due to consistent reduction in number of vanpools and impacts by 
COVID-19. MTA provided information of other transit agencies that had viable 
vanpool programs to the two remaining vanpool participants. The vanpool vehicles 
were going to reach their four -year useful life benchmark in May, 2021. The Authority 
Board determined that for financial and risk purposes, it was best to terminate the 
program as there were only two van pools in operation. 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 18



Page | 6 
 

Map 1 – Service Area 
 
 

 

 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 19



Page | 7 
 

 

 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 20



Page | 8 
 

Table 1 - Fares 
Travel within Mason County and Active Military     Fare Free 
Out of County Travel: 

Cash Fares 
Adults and Youth (one way)                                                                         $1.50 
Seniors and Persons with Disabilities                                                           $  .50 
Transportation Incentive Program (PSNS)                                                   $ 2.50 
Children under six                                                                                  No Charge 

Monthly Pass 
Adults                                                                                                          $  30.00 
Seniors and Persons with Disabilities                                                          $  10.00 
Youth (ages 6-17 years)                                                                              $  18.00 
Summer Youth Adventure Pass                                                                  $  20.00 
Transportation Incentive Program (PSNS)                                                  $110.00 

 

To qualify for reduced fare due to a disability, riders are required to show a Regional 
Reduced Fare Permit (RRFP) card. RRFP eligibility is based on age, disability or 
possession of a Medicare card. Personal care attendants ride free when accompanying 
a person with a RRFP.  

Transportation Incentive Program (TIP) passes are available for Worker/Driver routes 
to and from Puget Sound Naval Shipyard for day shift employees. Routes originate in 
Belfair and Shelton. Active-duty military personnel with current military ID are not 
charged fare if ID is shown. 

In July 2018, MTA began recognizing the STAR pass for State of Washington employees 
living in Mason County that work in Thurston County. STAR pass holders are not 
charged a fare and MTA is compensated through funds provided in the Transportation 
budget. 

Facilities 
MTA operations, maintenance and administrative facilities are located at 
790 E. Johns Prairie Road in Shelton, Washington. A rented satellite operations 
facility is located at 23780 NE State Hwy 3 in Belfair, Washington. MTA also leases 
space at the Glacier West Boat, RV & Self Storage commercial storage facility on SR 
106 in Belfair to park two coaches and five cutaway vans used to provide services in 
the northern part of Mason County. 

MTA owns the Transit-Community Center, formerly the Shelton Armory, located at 
601 W. Franklin St. in Shelton, Washington. The facility was renovated with additional 
new construction transforming the original armory built in the 1950s to a modern, 
ADA accessible and LEED Silver Certified Transit-Community Center (T-CC).  

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 21



Page | 9 
 

A seven-acre parcel was purchased north of Belfair for a Park and Ride lot. The lot will 
contain 100 parking stalls and a building consisting of MTA office space, a meeting 
room, bathrooms, a kitchen, breakroom and future customer service area. The Park 
and Ride is slated to open by the end of 2021 with the building to open in early 2022. 

Park and Ride Lots 
MTA supports a network of Park and Ride facilities that are located throughout 
Mason County. At time of publication, 255 parking spaces are provided at facilities 
owned and operated by Washington State Department of Transportation, 
Mason County and the City of Shelton.  While MTA manages and provides routine 
light maintenance to these locations, the agency does not own the properties.  On 
average, 22% of the Park and Ride lot capacity is occupied on any given weekday.  

In November of 2015, MTA was formally awarded funding through the Washington 
State Regional Mobility Grant Program and the Connecting Washington Transit 
Project List for a major retrofit and improvement project of current Park and Ride 
lots located within Mason County. The project will add needed upgrades to existing 
locations including enhanced security, lighting, paving and electric car charging 
stations at high use lots.  The project also includes the construction of one new Park 
and Ride facility in North Mason County and one within the city limits of Shelton.  The 
Shelton-Matlock Park & Ride was slated for improvements only but has been 
relocated due to the Coffee Creek Fish Passage project. The funding provides over 
nine million dollars and includes local matching funds from MTA.  The state funding is 
apportioned over the current and next biennium budget periods.  In April of 2016, 
MTA selected SCJ Alliance of Lacey, Washington, to guide the project through to 
completion. MTA expects completion of the project in 2021.   

State and Agency Goals, Objectives and Strategies 
 

From 2021-2026, Mason Transit Authority will focus on the five key priorities in 
Table 2 below. The table shows how MTA’s local priorities align with state goals 
established in the Washington State Transportation Plan.  

Through its mission, Mason Transit Authority strives to provide transportation 
choices that connect people, jobs and community; increasing the quality of life in 
Mason County. To that end, MTA’s proposed project and action strategies line up 
with the mission statement and the state’s public transportation objectives.  
 
 

 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 22



Page | 10 
 

The state’s six policy goals are: 

• Economic Vitality: To promote and develop transportation systems that 
stimulate, support, and enhance the movement of people and goods to ensure 
a prosperous economy. 

• Preservation: To maintain, preserve, and extend the life and utility of prior 
investments in transportation systems and services. 

• Safety: To provide for and improve the safety and security of transportation 
customers and the transportation system. 

• Mobility: To improve the predictable movement of goods and people 
throughout Washington State. 

• Environment: To enhance Washington’s quality of life through transportation 
investments that promote energy conservation, enhance healthy communities, 
and protect the environment. 

• Stewardship: To continuously improve the quality, effectiveness, and efficiency 
of the transportation system. 

Table 2:  2021 – 2026 Goals, Objectives, and Strategies, and Alignment with State 
Goal 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Goal I: Safe and Secure 
Objective 1.1 - Emphasize safety of MTA riders, 
citizens and employees in all aspects of MTA 
operations             

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.1 L&I inspection of 
T-CC and JP facilities.     X   X   

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.2 Review WSTIP's 
Best Practices in the area of safety. 

  
  X       

Strategic Work Plan 1.1.3 Update Safety 
Manual and include an emergency safety plan.     X X   X 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 23



Page | 11 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Objective 1.2 - Ensure training for a safe and 
secure experience for all and to eliminate 
preventable accidents             

Strategic Work Plan 1.2.1 Quarterly Driver 
training and refresher training as required   X X       
Objective 1.3 - Proactive approach to safety 
throughout the agency to increase and improve 
security throughout the service area             

Strategic Work Plan 1.3.1 Change from flag 
stops to fixed stops in urban area of Shelton     X X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 1.3.2 Roof replacement 
for the Radich Building   X X  X 

Objective 1.4 - Enforce transit rules and 
establish consistency of service to riders in a safe, 
accessible manner             

Strategic Work Plan 1.4.1 Adjust for any 
mandates to COVID-19.     X X   X 

Goal 2: Effective Transportation Services 
 

Objective 2.1 - Creating a positive transportation 
experience within all modes of MTA services that 
is reliable, accessible, equitable, safe, secure and 
comfortable for all users             

Strategic Work Plan 2.1.1 Plan for restoring 
to full services (Pre-COVID) and adjust where 
needed to improve service.   

     X 

Objective 2.2 - Establish a culture of customer 
service and deliver services that are responsive to 
community needs.             

Strategic Work Plan 2.2.1 Benchmark route 
performance and discontinue or adjust low 
performing routes.           X 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 24



Page | 12 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Objective 2.3 - Strive to look for ways to improve 
service through a variety of tools including 
outreach, community meetings, service review 
and passenger amenities             

Strategic Work Plan 2.3.1 Review Dial-a-Ride 
services and hours to ensure efficiency and 
availability of resources.       X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.3.2 Conduct outreach 
for all service changes and new park & ride 
openings. X         X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.3.3 Improve passenger 
amenities by providing apps and on-line 
scheduling.     X X   X 
Objective 2.4 - Seek new opportunities to 
enhance the riders' experience through better 
route planning and additional services when 
feasible             

Strategic Work Plan 2.4.1 Seek pilot route 
opportunities to reach more riders. X         X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.4.2 Explore on-
demand service in Shelton and Belfair.   X   X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 2.4.3 Waysign at T-CC 
for displaying estimated time of arrivals for fixed 
route.   X         

Goal 3: Financial Stewardship 
 

Objective 3.1 - Operate an efficient, cost-
effective system             

Strategic Work Plan 3.1.1 Hire an Accounting 
Coordinator with high level accounting skills. 

          X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.1.2 Review moving to 
cloud-based accounting software.      X 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 25



Page | 13 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Objective 3.2 - Maintain internal controls and 
compliance over public resources             

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.1 Plan for GASB 
changes on leases and other regulations           X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.2.2 Continued work in 
records management.   X       X 
Objective 3.3 - Provide current, accurate and 
transparent financial data             

Strategic Work Plan 3.3.1 Provide accurate, 
timely financial reports to the Board and the 
public           X 
Objective 3.4 - Strive for a 5-year sustainability 
plan             

Strategic Work Plan 3.4.1 Review 5-year 
sustainability plan and adjust as needed.           X 

Strategic Work Plan 3.4.2 Plan financially for 
future service changes or increases.      X 

Objective 3.5 - Plan for future operational and 
capital needs through maintaining financial 
reserves             

Strategic Work Plan 3.5.1   X       X 
Objective 3.6 - Proficiency in regulatory 
requirements through continuing education             

Strategic Work Plan 3.6.1            X 

Objective 3.7 - Manage key financial indicators             
Strategic Work Plan 3.7.1 Identify needed 

financial policies or manual to outline financial 
objectives           X 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 26



Page | 14 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Goal 4: Community Partnerships 
 

Objective 4.1 - Cultivate partnerships throughout 
the community             

Strategic Work Plan 4.1.1 Participate in 
community events as available.  

  X   X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 4.1.2 Work with PR firm 
to promote MTA services to the community.      X 
Objective 4.2 - Participate in outside committees, 
regional planning organizations and boards             

Strategic Work Plan 4.2.1 Promote 
partnerships with city, county and other entities 
by serving on committees, boards, supporting 
projects and communication.           X 

Strategic Work Plan 4.2.2 Review and renew 
leases for T-CC and Johns Prairie tenants           X 
Objective 4.3 - Participate in mentorship 
programs at local schools and colleges             

Strategic Work Plan 4.3.1. X X         
Objective 4.4 - Exemplify exceptional customer 
service that goes above and beyond             

Strategic Work Plan 4.4.1 Continue delivery 
assistance for Meals on Wheels and Commodity 
Boxes for senior centers.   X   X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 4.4.2 Transporting 
clients in cooperation with hospital and health 
department    X   
Objective 4.5 - Provide transportation choices 
and support travel that uses less energy, 
produces fewer pollutants and reduces 
greenhouse gases in the region             

Strategic Work Plan 4.5.1          X   

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 27



Page | 15 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Objective 4.6 - Support efforts to mitigate traffic 
congestion throughout the region             

Strategic Work Plan 4.6.1 Continue park and 
ride projects (through 2023). X   X X X   

Strategic Work Plan 4.6.2 Conduct 
Community Conversations to solicit input 
regarding MTA service.    X  X 
Objective 4.7 - Cooperative relationships with 
T-CC tenants and events             

Strategic Work Plan 4.7.1  X         X 

Goal 5: Workplace Culture of Excellence 

 

Objective 5.1 - Provide an atmosphere where 
employees are valued and respected             

Strategic Work Plan 5.1.1 Continue the 
Employee Engagement Committee for seeking 
opportunities to improve the work environment. 

  X       X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.1.2 Remodel T-CC 
Customer Service Office for space improvement 
(grant funding dependent)           X 
Objective 5.2 - Develop and empower employees             

Strategic Work Plan 5.2.1 Promote skills and 
job knowledge through webinars, conferences 
and training.   X X     X 
Objective 5.3 - Support the philosophy of team 
culture             

Strategic Work Plan 5.3.1 Encourage 
Castlight challenges.   X   X   X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.3.2 Continue reviewing 
policies.           X 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 28



Page | 16 
 

  State Goal Areas 

Goals, Objectives and Strategies Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Objective 5.4 - Promote healthy dialogue on 
important issues             

Strategic Work Plan 5.4.1 Launch 
Communication Flow Plan.   X       X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.4.2 Create Uniform 
Committee to select new uniform items.   X       X 
Objective 5.5 - Encourage an active and engaged 
environment including Board of Directors             

Strategic Work Plan 5.5.1 Create committee 
for Belfair office furnishings.            X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.5.2 Board participation 
through designated committees. X X X X   X 
Objective 5.6 - Be an employer of choice in 
Mason County             

Strategic Work Plan 5.6.1 Continue the 
Employee Engagement Committee for seeking 
opportunities to improve the work environment.   X       X 

Strategic Work Plan 5.6.2 Coordinate events 
with Employee Morale Committee.           X 

Objective 5.7 – Focus recruitments in accordance 
with EEO Plan goals             

Strategic Work Plan 5.7.1 Strive to meet 
goals and objectives of EEO Program to broaden 
employment opportunities for all protected 
classes.           X 

 

Local Performance Measures and Targets 
 

MTA uses various tools to measure performance by looking for key issues and 
opportunities that may impact the goals of the Agency. Performance indicators may 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 29



Page | 17 
 

relate to such things as funding, demographic changes, ridership decline or 
employee shortage. Measuring performance allows the agency leadership team to 
look for ways to minimize the impact of shortfalls and strategize ways to meet the 
strategic goals and objectives.  

Transit Asset Management plan is used as a method to maintain and guide decisions 
on the agency’s assets, most importantly, rolling stock. 

Table 3:  2021 – 2026 Performance Measurements and Targets 
Performance Measure Target 

Technology Amenities Provide apps and icons on the MTA website for customers to schedule 

Passenger Amenities 

Install lighting in all shelters. 
Construct or improve park and ride lots throughout Mason County to create 
convenient, safe locations for riders to park that will then increase ridership. 

Collisions Collisions per 100,00 revenue miles less than or equal to 1. 
Alternative Fuels Convert 10% of fleet to green, environmentally friendly alternative by 2025. 
Transit Productivity Benchmark of 8 passengers per service hour; 39,000 rides per month.   
Vehicle State of Good Repair Maintain 80% of the rolling stock within a state of good repair.   
Service Hours To maintain current levels of service hours at 1,300 per week. 

 

Plan Consistency 
 

Mason Transit Authority is a voting member of the Peninsula Regional 
Transportation Planning Organization (PRTPO) and participates in the planning of 
regional project, policies and program decisions. Information regarding MTA is 
submitted to the PRTPO’s Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services 
Transportation Plan to align the with region’s goals. Projects are submitted to the 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program for inclusion in the State 
Transportation Improvement program. 

Within Mason County, the Mason County Comprehensive Plan is used to 
coordinate consistency. MTA submits information to the Plan as required. 

Throughout the region, MTA coordinates with other connecting transit agencies in 
Jefferson, Kitsap and Thurston counties, as well as efforts to align with the ferry 
systems, Amtrak and Greyhound.  

MTA continues its own strategic planning process by identifying goals, objectives 
and work plans.  Annually, the work plan is reviewed to develop projects adhering 
to local, state and federal guidelines,  implementing effective/efficient service 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 30



Page | 18 
 

planning changes, fleet replacement standards, facility upgrade and modernization 
planning and implementation, policy development and modification, and 
procedural standards.  

MTA incorporates the Transportation System Policy Goals throughout all strategies. 
These goals as addressed in RCW 14.04.280 include preservation, safety, mobility, 
environment, and stewardship.  

Planned Capital Expenses 
 

The table below reflects planned capital expenses for 2021-2026. 

Table 4 – Planned Capital Expenses 

 

Year 
Received/Expensed Type 

Preservation/Replacement 
(quantity) 

Expansion/Improvement 
(quantity) 

2021 35' Coaches 2   
2022 35' Coach                                               1   
2022 Light-duty Cutaways 6   
2025 Light-duty Cutaways 5   
2026 35' Coaches                                                3   

Equipment 
2021 Scissor lift for T-CC   1 

2021 Generator to power Johns 
Prairie 1   

2022 Generator to power T-CC   1 
Facilities and Infrastructure 

2021 North Mason Base   1 
2021 Park and Ride Development  1 
2022 Radich building roof repair 1   

2023 Administration building 
upgrade or replacement   1 

2023 Allyn Park & Ride   1 
2023 Hoodsport Park & ride   1 
2024 Bus Wash    1 
2024 Satellite Maintenance Shop   1 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 31



Page | 19 
 

Planned Operating Changes 
 

At the time of preparing MTA’s Transit Development Plan, the agency is 
operating with reduced service due to the loss of riders during COVID-19.   
Service will gradually return as the region rebounds from COVID related 
closures. 

Table 5 outlines Mason Transit’s planned operating changes for 2021-2026. 

Table 5 – Planned Operating Changes 
 

Year Type Reduction Expansion/Improvement 

2021 
Adjust route to serve new park & ride facility 
openings   X 

2021 Add back routes as ridership increases  X 
2022 Adjust routes to better serve the passengers   X  
2022 Adjust routes to service new ferry times  X 
2023 Adjust routes to serve new housing developments    X 

2025 
Conduct an assessment of current service and 
adjust as needed   X 

2025 Conduct Transit Service Analysis   X 

2026 Adjust routes as needed  X 
 

Multiyear Financial Plan 

Capital Improvement: 
 The Park and Ride Development Project, including construction of the North 

Mason Base, is expected to be completed in the 2021-2023 Biennium. 
 Additional vehicle replacements are expected to be funded at 80% with a 20% 

match from local funds.  
 Feasibility studies are to be conducted for the Allyn and Hoodsport park and ride 

facilities as well as the bus wash, administration building, and satellite 
maintenance facility stations.  

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 32



Page | 20 
 

Facility improvements, preservation and expansion that extend the life of the 
building according to MTA’s capitalization standards are expected to be funded 
by grants with local funds used as match. Building repairs or replacement to 
such equipment will be funded by reserves and appropriated through the capital 
budget presented annually. 

Table 6 – Capital Purchases 

 
 

Operating Financial Assumptions through 2026 
 Local Sales Tax –Sales tax revenues have been higher than expected during COVID 

in 2020 and 2021.  The 2022 projected amount reflects a 20% increase over the 
2021 adopted budget estimates to account for the higher actual return.  Years 2022 
– 2026 are projected at a 3% growth rate year over year. 

 Operating Grants – Utilization of Sales Tax Equalization dollars (Rural Mobility 
Formula Funds) for 2021-2022 have been applied to the operating grants to offset 
match requirements.  A conservative estimate of future Sales Tax Equalization funds 
for 2023 and beyond is applied with a 4% growth rate projected year over year. 

 Fares – Assumed 2% growth beginning in 2022. 

Capital Expenditure 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Cutaways 721,000     
Coaches 1,027,000 513,300     1,570,000   1,540,054   
Scissor Lift 15,000       
Generators 100,000     100,000     
North Mason Base 1,750,000 
Radich Roof Repair 35,000       
Allyn Park & Ride 50,000       
Hoodsport Park & Ride 50,000       
Bus Washer 40,000         
Park & Ride Development 1,992,612 
Satellite Maintenance Shop 1,500,000 
Administration building 
upgrade or replacement 2,500,000 

Total Capital Expenditures 4,884,612 1,369,300 100,000     1,610,000   4,000,000 1,540,054   

Capital Revenue 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Federal Competitive 901,600     490,640     2,080,000 1,200,000   432,000     1,232,044   
State Grants 2,994,090 576,800     32,000         
Local Funds 988,922     301,860     520,000     308,000       108,000     308,010      
Total Revenue 4,884,612 1,369,300 2,600,000 1,540,000   540,000     1,540,054   

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 33



Page | 21 
 

 Worker Driver/Vanpool revenue shows a decrease in 2022 with the vanpool 
program eliminated in 2021, in addition the Worker Driver program is experiencing 
less ridership with changing work structures at the shipyard. 
Salaries and Benefits – The salary and benefit budget was significantly lower 
compared to recent years due to a reduction in budgeted drivers in 2021 due 
to reduced service levels. In 2022 MTA is planning to bring the back the pre-
pandemic number of drivers. Early quotes for healthcare benefits for 2022 have 
been quoted with an increase in medical coverage between 4 and 9%. The 
factor for 2023 and beyond is a 4% increase in cost to salaries and benefits. 

Projects of Regional Significance 
 

Mason Transit Authority has one major project of regional significance. In 
2014, MTA was awarded funds to construct new park & ride lots and upgrade 
existing lots with security enhancements, passenger amenities and increased 
stalls. 

Agency History, Organizational Structure, 
Accomplishments, Outlook and Outreach Coordination 

 

Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Area, doing business as Mason 
Transit Authority (MTA), is a Public Transportation Benefit Area (PTBA), 
authorized in Chapter 36.57A RCW. Located in Mason County, Washington, 
the Mason County voters approved the PTBA in November 1991 and began 
public transportation service in December 1992.  The service area includes all 
of Mason County, if road access is available, with connections to adjacent 
counties. 

The proposition imposing a sales and use tax of two-tenths of one percent 
(0.2%) to fund public transportation was also passed in 1991, creating a 
prepaid fare system service. In the aftermath of Initiative 695 and the 
elimination of Motor Vehicle Excise Tax that was available to transits, the voters 
were asked to approve an additional four-tenths of one percent increase 
(0.4%) in 1999. The first attempt failed but was successful when County 
residents responded with an approval of the additional sales tax increase on 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 34



Page | 22 
 

September 18, 2001. This raised the taxing base to six-tenths of one percent 
(0.6%) or $.06 on every $10 of retail sales, effective January 1, 2002. MTA then 
began to charge a fare, but only for routes going out-of-county. 

Board of Directors: 
The Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Authority Board of Directors is 
composed of ten members as follows: 

 Three (3) elected members representing Mason County Commissioners; 
 One (1) elected member representing the City of Shelton Council; 
 Five (5) members who shall be elected officials selected by the Mason County 

Commissioners with the goal of seeking equal voting representation among 
the County Commissioner Districts. The recommendation was approved by 
Mason County and the City of Shelton pursuant to Resolutions Nos. 71-17 and 
1112-1217, respectively; and 

 In accordance with revisions made to RCW 36.57A.050, there shall be one (1) 
non-voting labor representative recommended by the labor organization 
representing the public transportation employees. 

Mason County Public Transportation Benefit Authority (MTA) Board Members at time of 
publication are: 

 Sharon Trask, Mason County Commissioner (Chair) 
 Sandy Tarzwell, Shelton School District (Vice Chair) 
 Randy Neatherlin, Mason County Commissioner  
 Kevin Shutty, Mason County Commissioner 
 Kevin Dorcy, Mayor and City of Shelton Council  
 John Campbell, North Mason School District  
 Wes Martin, Grapeview School District  
 Cyndy Brehmeyer, Mary M. Knight School District 
 Matt Jewett, Southside School District 
 Greg Heidel, Bargaining Unit Representative 

Citizen Adviser to the Board: 
Effective January 1, 2019, there may be one (1) non-voting representative of the 
public residing in Mason County, Washington, as a citizen adviser to the Board. 
The citizen adviser to the Board shall serve for a period of one year (unless 
extended by motion by the Authority Board).  

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 35



Page | 23 
 

At the time of publication of the Transit Development Plan, the position of the 
Citizen Adviser to the Board was filled by: 

 John Piety 

Public Outreach: 
MTA staff is committed to public engagement and transparency through robust public 
interaction that informs, involves, and empowers people and communities. Staff 
participate in several opportunities to promote and educate citizens through the 
following methods: 

 Public meetings 
 Media – outreach 
 Radio spots 
 Community events and meetings 
 Presentations 
 Website improvements 

 
The public outreach program includes: 
 Developing an awareness of MTA services with non-riders through 

presentations, media and community events. 
 Engaging riders and the general public by soliciting feedback through active 

seeking of information by face-to-face interaction and surveys. 
 Seeking opportunities to increase ridership amongst riders of choice. 
 Visiting businesses to discover way to assist their employees with 

transportation, either by using, fixed-route or Dial-a-Ride. 
 Promoting positive public image in the community and build relationships 

throughout. 
 Public Hearings for service changes, Transit Development Plan (TDP), fare 

changes, and other topics that impact citizens. 
 
There are comment cards on MTA vehicles to be filled out and submitted as a method 
to communicate compliments, complaints or other information a rider wants staff to 
be aware. Management or designated staff responds to the individual comment cards 
as appropriate.  
 
Citizens may contact MTA through customer service or to an individual by the 
following methods: 
 Email: mta@masontransit.org 
 Phone: 360-427-5033 or 360-426-9434 or 800-374-3747 
 TTY/TTD: 711 or 800-833-6388 
 Website: www.masontransit.org 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 36

http://www.masontransit.org/
http://www.masontransit.org/


Page | 24 
 

 
Individual staff members may be contacted through using the website or phone to 
locate email addresses or phone extensions. 
 
For ADA needs, citizens may use the website or call customer service for assistance. 

2020 Accomplishments: 
The following chart lists major accomplishments by MTA during 2020.  

Table 9 – 2020 Accomplishments 
  State Goal Areas 
2020 Accomplishments toward State 
Goal Areas 

Ec
on

om
ic 

Vi
ta

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Administration 
Procurement training for public works 
projects 

     X 

Increased reserves for future financial 
needs 

 X  X  X 

Managed many different mandates, 
regulations and acts due to COVID-19 

 X X X X  

Prepared policy review schedule; 
reviewed current policies; updated 20 
policies 

  X   X 

Prepared 4 new policies – 2 due to 
COVID-19 

X  X   X 

Reorganized facilities to streamline 
administration 

     X 

Purchased and installed firewalls at all 
location to begin network 
reconfiguration 

  X   X 

Setup Wi-Fi for the public to use at the 
T-CC 

     X 

Continued design for shared drive and 
continued work in records management 

  X   X 

Finished the migration of server to our 
new VRTX, decommissioned old server 

     X 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 37



Page | 25 
 

  State Goal Areas 
2020 Accomplishments toward State 
Goal Areas 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Surplused the majority of 
decommissioned equipment 

     X 

Setup interpretation services X  X   X 

Setup IT in new Belfair location   X   X 

Outreach 
Two Radio Spots X     X 
12-weekly Ads   X    
Donated one DAR vehicle to Mason 
County QRT 

X  X    

Participation of outside committees: 
WSTIP, WSTA, EDC, TIP-CAP, Diesel 
Advisory Committee; PRTPO and TAC; 
Opioid Stakeholder Group 

X X X X X X 

Public Hearings for TDP, Service changes 
and Budget 

   X  X 

Meals on Wheels and Commodity Box 
delivery 

X  X    

Conducted tour groups at MTA, prior to 
COVID-19 

X     X 

Spearheaded Driver Appreciation day in 
2020 

     X 

T-CC       
Accommodated move of Operations 
Supervisors and Comm Center; 
beginning move of Admin 

  X X  X 

T-CC Parking Lot completed  X X  X X 

Repainted inside of the gym and LEED 
building stairs 

 X     

Shampooed all carpets  X     

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 38



Page | 26 
 

  State Goal Areas 
2020 Accomplishments toward State 
Goal Areas 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Maintenance, inspections and test 
completed in various areas 

 X     

Streamlined and standardized leases and 
Use Agreements 

X X    X 

COVID-19 related assistance in several 
areas, developed reopening plan 

  X    

Developed and maintaining a sanitizing 
schedule for high touch areas 

  X    

Operations       
Driver Training and Refresher Training   X X  X 
Completed CAD/AVL/GPS Installation   X X  X 
Purchase high visibility rain jackets       
Operations Supervisors moved to T-CC   X   X 
Review DAR services and hours for 
efficiency and availability 

X   X  X 

Expand Zipper route hours X   X  X 

Review the Comprehensive Service 
Review to incorporate suggestions 

X   X  X 

Installed Kiosk at T-CC for passenger 
information 

  X   X 

Managed several service changes and 
driver shake-ups due to COVID-19 

X  X   X 

Social distancing measures throughout 
facilities and vehicles 

  X    

Provided PPE for employees and 
customers for COVID-19 protection 

  X  X X 

Provided drivers for the Volunteer Driver 
Program 

X  X X   

Managed constant changes to service 
and driver shortage 

X  X X   

Created an Emergency Alert Text 
message for MTA employees 

X  X X   

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 39



Page | 27 
 

  State Goal Areas 
2020 Accomplishments toward State 
Goal Areas 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Installed a solar light at Triton Cove bus 
stop 

  X    

Completed review/update of Inclement 
Weather Plan 

  X  X X 

Created a COVID-19 coordinator/driver 
position to help implement mandates 

  X X   

Facilitated training with Fire Dept & Gillig 
on the new Hybrid electrical systems 

  X    

Partnered w/local police agencies to use 
MTA facilities/buses for training 

  X X   

Installed a bus shelter on Grapeview 
Loop and Washington DOC. 

  X X  X 

Participated in the Great Washington 
ShakeOut/Earthquake drill 

  X X   

Maintenance       
State of Good Repair at target with 
incoming vehicles 

X X X X X X 

Bus replacement builds for 9 cutaways, 4 
coaches and one mini cutaway 

 X X    

Incorporated first two hybrid vehicles into 
fleet 

    X  

Rebranded Fleet X      
Continuous efforts to maintain and 
preserve transit-owned facilities 

 X X   X 

Revamped daily bus and shelter cleaning 
schedules to combat COVID-19 

  X    

Review of electric impact of electric vehicle 
charging of buses 

    X  

Belfair office move to temporary mobile 
structure at Roy Boad 

  X   X 

Applied for vehicle grant to replace end of 
life vehicles 

X X X X X X 

Ongoing safety initiatives including new 
eye wash stations 

  X    

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 40



Page | 28 
 

  State Goal Areas 
2020 Accomplishments toward State 
Goal Areas 

Ec
on

om
ic

 V
ita

lit
y 

Pr
es

er
va

tio
n 

Sa
fe

ty
 

M
ob

ili
ty

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

St
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

Bus improvements including installation of 
remanufactured engines and transmissions 

X  X   X 

Placed curbs in parking area next to the 
building at Johns Prairie 

  X    

Major Projects       
Bus Technology - tablets, CAD/AVL, new 
scheduling software, passenger counting all 
installed. Working on voice enunciation and 
customer apps 

 X X X   

Park & Ride Development - continued with 
new construction of park & ride lots and retro-
fitting, upgrading existing lots 

X X X X  X 

       
 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 41



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP)  
Prepared by:  Amy Asher, General Manager 
Approved by:  Amy Asher, General Manager 
Date:    August 17, 2021 
 
 
Background: 
 
Washington State’s Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) is a four-
year, fiscally constrained prioritized multimodal transportation program of state, local, 
tribal and public transportation (transit) projects. The STIP is a calendar year document 
and is developed on an annual basis. Projects are identified through state, metropolitan, 
regional, tribal and local planning processes. Projects programmed in the STIP are the 
highest priority for the available funding to preserve and improve the state’s 
transportation network and achieving national goals established in the Moving Ahead 
for Progress in the 21st Century Act (MAP-21) and continued in the Fixing America’s 
Surface Transportation Act (FAST). 
 
Only those projects programmed in the STIP can be authorized by the Federal 
Highways Administration (FHWA) and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) to utilize 
federal funds. Once projects are approved in the STIP, agencies may request federal 
fund authorization of the project. 
 
MTA has prepared and filed its six year TIP for inclusion in the Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program through the Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization (PRTPO) for submission to the Washington State Department of 
Transportation (WSDOT). Some of the highlights of the MTA six year TIP are as follows: 
 

• Replacement of vehicles beyond useful life. 
• Allyn and Hoodsport parking facility planning. 
• Administration facility planning. 
• Maintenance shop at North Mason park and ride facility. 

 
 
We will be looking for grant opportunities regarding the planned projects that are 
contained in the TIP. 
 
 
Summary:  Approval of MTA’s 6-year TIP. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
TBD. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 42



 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Mason Transit Authority’s TIP 
submission to the PRTPO for inclusion in the 2022-2026 Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Plan. 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 43



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

09    WA-12164                         23 No

6 Cutaways and 1 35' Coach - Rolling Stock Replacement

 to 

Replace six (6) cutaway vehicles and one (1) 35' Coach to meet State of Good 
Repair (SGR)for the agency.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

S ALL 2022 5339(b) 952,145 0 317,381 1,269,526

Totals 952,145 0 317,381 1,269,526

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 1,269,526 0 0 0 0

Totals 1,269,526 0 0 0 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 1

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 44



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

00    WA-12943                         23 CE No

Five Cutaways - 2025 Vehicle Replacement

 to 

Replace five (5) cutaways to maintain State of Good Repair to meet agency target of 
80%.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2025 5339(b) 432,000 0 108,000 540,000

Totals 432,000 0 108,000 540,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 0 540,000 0

Totals 0 0 0 540,000 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 2

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 45



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

09    WA-12170                         23 CE No

Satellite Maintenance Shop

 to 

Construct a satellite maintenance shop at the North Mason County Park and Ride 
and Operations Facility to accommodate service on vehicles used in the north end to 
eliminate bringing vehicles to Johns Prairie base for service and repairs.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2024 5339 800,000 0 200,000 1,000,000

Totals 800,000 0 200,000 1,000,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 0 1,000,000 0 0

Totals 0 0 1,000,000 0 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 3

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 46



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

00    WA-12941                         23 No

Three 35ft Coaches - 2026 Vehicle Replacement

 to 

Replace three (3) 35' coaches to maintain State of Good Repair to meet agency 
target of 80%.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2026 5339(b) 1,232,044 0 308,010 1,540,054

Totals 1,232,044 0 308,010 1,540,054

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 1,540,054 0 0 0 0

Totals 1,540,054 0 0 0 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 4

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 47



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

09 7    WA-02055                         23 CE No

Admin/Operations Facility

N/A to N/A

Construct a new facility for MTA administration and operations to improve 
functionality and provide better ADA accessibility. It was determined that it would be 
more feasible to construct a new facility as the current facility would take major 
renovation to meet the requirements for ADA and better functionality. By constructing 
a new building, it would improve the parking area and mobility of vehicles as well as 
provide space for a bus wash facility.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2025 5339 2,000,000 0 500,000 2,500,000

Totals 2,000,000 0 500,000 2,500,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 2,500,000 0 0 0

Totals 0 2,500,000 0 0 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 5

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 48



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

09 20    WA-02081                         23 CE No

Mobile Bus Wash

N/A to N/A

Purchase mobile bus wash machine.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2024 5339(b) 32,000 0 8,000 40,000

Totals 32,000 0 8,000 40,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 80,000 0 0 0 0

Totals 80,000 0 0 0 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 6

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 49



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

09 22    WA-02084                         23 CE No

Allyn Transit Center Planning

N/A to N/A

Working with County and WSDOT, initiate a planning process for a transit center that 
supports the commercial, retail and residential masterplan for Allyn. This project is 
also Improvement type 18- Planning

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P PE 2023 0 WSDOT 40,000 10,000 50,000

Totals 0 40,000 10,000 50,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 50,000 0 0 0 0

Totals 50,000 0 0 0 0

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 7

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 50



Agency: Mason Transit Authority

County: Mason

MPO/RTPO: Peninsula RTPO N Inside Y Outside

F
u

n
ctio

n
al

C
lass

P
rio

rity N
u

m
b

er

A. PIN/Project No.
C. Project Title
D. Road Name or Number
E. Begin & End Termini
F. Project Description

B. STIP ID

G. Structure ID

H
earin

g

A
d

o
p

ted

A
m

en
d

m
en

t

R
eso

lu
tio

n
 N

o
.

Im
p

ro
vem

en
t T

yp
e

U
tility C

o
d

es

T
o

tal L
en

g
th

E
n

viro
n

m
en

tal T
yp

e

R
W

 R
eq

u
ired

09 23    WA-02085                         23 CE No

Hoodsport Transit Center US Hwy 101 and SR119

N/A to N/A

Feasibility study to design, locate and construct a small transit center near the 
intersection of SR119 and US 101 to complement a locally developed park and ride 
lot.

Funding

Status Phase Phase Start Year (YYYY) Federal Fund Code Federal Funds State Fund Code State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

P ALL 2023 5311 40,000 0 10,000 50,000

Totals 40,000 0 10,000 50,000

Expenditure Schedule

Phase 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th & 6th

ALL 0 50,000 0 0 0

Totals 0 50,000 0 0 0

Federal Funds State Funds Local Funds Total Funds

Grand Totals for Mason Transit Authority 5,488,189 40,000 1,461,391 6,989,580

Report Date: August 12, 2021 Page 8

Six Year Transportation Improvement Program
From 2022 to 2027

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 51



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 52



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 53



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 54



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 55



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 56



Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 57



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 2 – Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Amy Asher, General Manager 
Date:    August 17, 2021 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 58



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board August 17, 2021 
 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 59



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|8
/1

7/
20

21
 

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board August 17, 2021 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

General Manager Report: 
 
Park & Ride Development: 

• Ribbon cutting for Pear Orchard Park and Ride held August 4th, 2021 with approximately 
25 community members in attendance. 

• Belfair: Toured the Belfair Park and Ride and facility July 30th with Maintenance Manager.  The 
building shell is complete with studs still visible.  Met with our IT and Facilities staff to discuss security 
and technology related needs inside the building while everything is still accessible. 

• Please see the Park and Ride report from Maintenance for information. 
WSTIP:  

• Met with Tracey Christianson with WSTIP to discuss facility insurance. She will be reviewing our lease 
agreements to ensure we are asking our leaseholders for adequate coverage when we are named as 
an additional insured. 

WSTA/SMTA:  
• Participated in weekly SMTA and WSTA coordination calls with other General Managers from around 

the state. 
Webinars:  
       Attended the following webinars: 

• FTA Listening Session series on Restoring Ridership. 
• Part 1 of 2: Summit Law webinar on vaccine mandates. 

External Activities: 
• Met with EDC Director. 
• Began meeting with MTA Board members. 
• Met with Family ESS Director. 
• Held public hearings for the TDP on July 29 and August 9. 
• Attended EDC Business Appreciation Event. 

Internal Activities: 
• Coordination with IT and Administrative Services Staff on cyber security options to implement in light 

of increased insurance costs. 
• Participated in monthly safety committee meeting. 
• Reviewed capital projects with Facilities and Maintenance Manager for inclusion in the STIP and TDP. 
• Reviewed audio/visual options for continued hybrid meetings in the TCC Conference Room. 
• Begin review of EV Charging Station billing options and initiate activation. 
• Participated in employee interview for Accounting Coordinator position. 

 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 60



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
8/

17
/2

02
1 

 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
 
HR Support: 

• Interviewed candidates for Accounting Coordinator position. Performed a second team interview with a 
candidate resulting in a hire. I am pleased to announce Jenna Reboin has joined the Admin Services 
team on August 16, 2021. 

• We have several individuals out on extended leave right now. Providing guidance on leave, pay, etc. 
• Attended monthly Safety Committee meeting. 
• Beginning process to perform wage analysis for positions across the agency for 2022 budget season, 

including upcoming Drivers third year contract wage negotiations. 
• Providing information to staff regarding Long Term Care coverage and the optional plan being offered 

by AWC & Trustmark as an option to the WA CARES FUND. 
• Launched next Drivers Class recruitment for a start date of October 19. 

 
Administrative Services Support 

• The audit is moving along swiftly with no issues reported to date.  Areas of focus include Financial 
review, Construction in Progress for Park and Ride projects, Procurement, Public Works change orders, 
Surplus, Payroll, ACH/EFT controls.  The Federal Single audit was focused on Federal Bus and Bus 
Facilities dollars for the two Hybrid, two 40’ coaches and 9 cutaways received in 2020. 

• Attended SAO Leases for GAAP training. 
• Participated in multiple meetings with Right Systems and recommended vendors to assess cyber 

security risk and insurance coverage. 
• In the process of moving MIP financial software to their cloud-based service. This will provide access 

to the software’s modern interface and provide greater security of data. 
• Working on sustainability projections now that we know what our operating grant funding looks like 

through June 30, 2023. 
 
 
MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 
 
Outreach and meetings: 

• Completed agenda for Fall WSTA conference and maintenance forum. 
 

T-CC Facility: 
•  Pickleball sessions continue in the gym this July and 115 total players attended. Tele-care is 

conducting weekly training for their staff and 17 students attended in July. 
• 26 people utilized the kitchen during July.    

 
T-CC Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance 

• Repaired clogged sewer line, had line scoped and established cleaning scheduled to prevent clogging 
issues.  
 

Johns Prairie and Belfair Building Projects/Purchases/Maintenance 
• Continuing with Voyager and FASTER fuel integration. 
• Scheduled 5-year sprinkler, back flow and fire alarm panel inspections in September. 

  

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 61



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|8
/1

7/
20

21
 

  

Park and Rides 
• Shelton Matlock:  Light poles installed. Waiting on security cameras and landscaping. I expect it to be 

completed by August. 
• Pear Orchard:  Wrapping up charger installation 
• Belfair.  Construction is progressing. Septic is completed and building construction is moving forward.  

Investigating security solutions, alarms and cameras for the building.  I anticipate this project to be 
completed in October 2021. 

• Pickering and Cole Rd:  Construction is progressing at both facilities, hopefully we can obtain the 
security cameras and bring these projects to completion.  
 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
 
Cole Road Park and Ride 

• Worked with Mason County Public Works and the WSDOT Arborist to have a few trees removed to 
allow better visibility into the park and ride. 

COVID-19 
• We transported 1 COVID-19 positive rider who was getting released from the hospital. 

T-CC Customer Service 
• On July 17, we opened the T-CC Customer Service, atrium and bathrooms on Saturdays to improve our 

customer service for riders. 

Pear Orchard Park and Ride 
• Conducted a “Grand Opening” of the park and ride on August 4, 2021, Thanks to everyone who 

attended! 

Ride Recoveries 
• Operations staff conducted 36 ride recoveries to ensure all passengers got to their final destinations. 

Ridership 
• We had 15,086 total riders in all modes of transportation in July, 2021. This is a decrease of 894 

riders from June, 2021.  

New Driver Class 
• We have scheduled the next new driver class to start on October 19, 2021. We hope to hire five new 

drivers. 

Safety Meeting 
• Conducted a MTA Safety meeting on July 27 to discuss concerns.  

Training 
• Conducted a class for Volunteer Drivers training for 3 individuals.  

October 4 Shake-Up 
• We are soliciting ideas from staff to make minor improvements to our current blocks of work to be 

used for the next shake-up. 

Visits 
• Chris DeVoll, WSTIP Transit Risk Specialist, came out for a visit on August 14 to see how our 

operations were going from a safety point of view.  Lesley Jackson, Twin Transit Operations Supervisor, 
came out to see how we operate our service. 

Worker/Driver routes 
•  On August 16 we reduced from 4 routes to 3 routes to the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard due to a 

decrease in ridership and an increase in bus capacity.  

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 62



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
8/

17
/2

02
1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 63



2021 Work Items Completed as 
of 8/11/2021

1st Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

2nd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

3rd Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

4th Quarter Driver training and refresher training as required

Change from flag stop to fixed stop in urban area of Shelton

Curbs or bollards at Johns Prairie √
Review WSTIP Best Practices for Safety
Continue to monitor COVID-19 compliance and adjust for any 
mandates as needed
Update Safety Manual and prepare Emergency Plan

Roof replacement for the Radich building

L&I Review of the T-CC

Benchmark route performance and monitor low-performing routes

Review DAR services and hours to ensure efficiency and availability of 
resources

Seek new route opportunities

Passenger Apps for scheduling and tracking bus

Sign at T-CC for estimated time of arrivals for fixed route

Explore on-demand services for Shelton and Belfair

Internal assistance with Volunteer Driver Program Transportation

Conduct outreach for all service changes and new park & ride 
openings
Plan for restoring to full service (Pre-COVID) and adjust where 
needed to improve service

Records Management - Network reorganization

Continued work in records management

Hire an Accounting Coordinator with high level accounting skills √
Prepare Fixed Asset policy, Investment policy, and other financial 
policies as identified
Explore moving MIP accounting software to the Cloud
Review 5-year sustainability plan and adjust as needed 

Plan financially for future service changes or increases

Prepare for GASB changes on leases and other regulations √

Progress

Objective 1: Safe and Secure

Training in CPR/AED/FA; Trina completed Defensive Driver Instructor Recertification

Training in CPR/AED/FA.

Training in CPR/AED/FA; Trina completed Defensive Driver Instructor Recertification

Objective 2: Effective Transportation Services

On-going. 

Bollards are in place along the building where parking is available.

The Safety Committee is reviewing with follow up at the 5/25 meeting.

Project replaced with the investment in wheel-end hoists as per Motion at April 2021 meeting.

In April - passenger app went live and we are using bus tracking. Passenger bus tracking coming September.

Summer time project.  Work will be coordinated with external IT firm.

Objective 3: Financial Stewardship

August 2021 - begin hiring drivers to prepare for service restoration in late 2021 early 2022.

February new route to Olympia started that will utilize Shelton-Matlock Park & Ride once open.

MTA Extra Board Drivers provided 109 volunteer rides in 2021.   

Shelton/Matlock, Pickering and Cole Road nearing completion.  Pear Orchard opened August 2021.

Ongoing paper records continue to be analyzed for archive parameters, mapping of network restructure 
underway.

Collecting policy examples from peer transit ASK responses for Investment and Reserve policies.

Began updating sustainability. With the addition of federal COVID-19 grants, we are achieving our 5-year 
sustainable benchmark. Waiting to determine what the American Rescue Plan award will be before publishing.

Planning for service restoration to pre-COVID levels.

Attended training by SAO & GFOA.  Setting new leases to better comply with GASB.

This will happen EOY, once term of annual maintenance fee is exhausted.  

Completed August 2021.

Exploring scan and toss. Tracy and Tyler in motion.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2021 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2021 Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 64



Conduct Community Conversations to solicit input regarding MTA 
services

Participate in community events as available

Park & Ride project (through 2023)

Promote Partnerships with City, County and other entities by serving 
on committees, boards, supporting projects, etc. √
Continue delivery assistance for Meals on Wheels and Commodity 
Boxes for senior centers
Transporting clients in cooperation with hospital and health 
department

1st Quarter PR Campaigns
2nd Quarter PR Campaigns
3rd Quarter PR Campaigns
4th Quarter PR Campaigns

Continue Employee Engagement Committee for seeking 
opportunities to improve the work environment
Launch Communication Flow Plan

Coordinate events with EMC

Create committee for Belfair Office furnishings

Encourage Castlight Challenges

Create Uniform committee to select new uniform items
Strive to meet goals and objectives of EEO program to broaden 
employment opportunities for all protected classes
Consult with contractor for remodeling/updating Customer Service 
office at the T-CC
Continue reviewing policies

Objective 4: Community Partnerships and Responsibility

DAR, COVID safety, Busing on the Lookout, Employee of the Year

Park & Ride projects slated for substantial completion by year-end 2021.

7 riders were transported in January to be tested for COVID-19; throughout March-May,  three (3) COVID-19 
positive passengers were transported to or from medical appointments, and one passenger transported from 
Mason General Hospital to the passenger's residence. Three (3) passengers were transported to receive their 
COVID vaccinations and in collaboration with the HUB, 140 clients were transported to obtain COVID 
vaccinations.

Next policy review committee meeting September 2nd.

Ongoing. Leadership team participates in WSTA Committees, EDC, PRTPO and TAC meetings.
Delivered 2,586 meals and commodity boxes in YTD 2021 

Objective 5: Workplace Culture

Committee continues to meet. Next meeting scheduled August 30th to discuss alternatives to annual meeting.

Communication flow plan is substantially complete and will be reviewed by managers before launch to staff.
EMC supported local business Hunter Farms by purchasing May Day flowers for a staff event.  Events for the 
balance of the year are under consideration.

Paylocity allows us to identify candidate classifications for consideration in the hiring process.

N:\Admin\Admin Shared\MTA Authority Board ARCHIVAL\2021 Authority Board\Workplan Update 2021 Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 65



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Report Item 3 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, Project Manager, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Amy Asher, General Manager 
Date:    August 17, 2021 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Pear Orchard Construction: The ChargePoint station has been installed and is awaiting 
activation by ChargePoint. SCJ is working with MTA to verify driver sight distance 
concerns to ensure safe and efficient operation of the park and ride. 
 
Belfair Park and Ride Construction: Rognlin’s is sending in submittals and RFIs. 
Rognlin’s is progressing site and building construction. Rognlin’s is focused primarily on 
building construction at this point. The estimated completion for this site is end of 
October 2021. 
 
Shelton Matlock Park and Ride Construction: The illumination poles have been installed. 
The fencing, power connection and wiring are the next step. The estimated completion 
for this site is August 2021. 
 
Pickering Road Park and Ride Construction: Roglin’s has completed paving and sidewalk 
construction. The next steps will be to finalize illumination, security cameras, 
signing/striping, and landscaping. The estimated completion for this site is August 2021. 
 
Cole Road Park and Ride Construction: The next step for this site will be to install the 
illumination and security system. The estimated completion for this site is August 2021. 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 66



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 4 – Informational 
Subject:    Operational Statistics 
Prepared by:  LeeAnn McNulty, Administrative Services Manager 
Approved by:  Amy Asher, General Manager 
Date:    August 17, 2021 
 
 
Background: 
 
The attached ridership data displays In County, Out of County, Demand Response and 
Worker Driver ridership as well as combined total ridership per month since 2018.  
 
Average daily total ridership based on # of service days in the month in 2021: 
 
January     - 24 service days            485 
February  - 23 service days            569 
March     - 27 service days            599 
April      - 26 service days        605 
May  - 25 service days        568 
June   -26 service days            598 
July  - 27 service days        558 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 67



RIDERSHIP DATA CHARTED

750

1500

2250

3000

3750

4500

Demand Response
2021

2020

2019

2018

1500

4000

6500

9000

11500

14000

16500

19000

21500
Out of County Ridership

2021

2020

2019

2018

3500

6500

9500

12500

15500

18500

In County Ridership 2021

2020

2019

2018

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

Total Ridership 2021

2020

2019

2018

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000
Worker Driver Ridership  2021

2020

2019

2018

Aug 17, 2021 Regular Mtg 68


	Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	CA 1 Minutes
	CA 2 Check Approval

	Unfinished Business
	Agenda
	TDP

	New Business
	Agenda
	STIP

	Info Items
	Financial Reports
	Agenda/Mgmt Reports
	Mgmt Reports
	Work Plan
	P&R Progress Update
	Agenda/Ops Stats
	Stats Charted




